
Principal Scrutiny Advisor:  
Rebecca Atherton 

Tel: (0113) 37 88642 
 

A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT, HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held remotely on 

Wednesday 2 December 2020 at 12.30 pm 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
B Anderson (Chair) - Adel and Wharfedale; 

J Akhtar - Little London and Woodhouse; 

J Bentley - Weetwood; 

A Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley; 

D Collins - Horsforth; 

M Dobson - Garforth and Swillington; 

A Gabriel - Beeston and Holbeck; 

P Grahame - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

A Khan - Burmantofts and Richmond Hill; 

P Gruen - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

M Harland - Kippax and Methley; 

N Sharpe - Temple Newsam; 

K Brooks - Little London and Woodhouse; 

T Smith - Pudsey; 

 
Note to observers of the meeting: To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the 
‘View the Meeting Recording’ link which will feature on the meeting’s webpage (linked 
below) ahead of the meeting. The webcast will become available at the commencement of 
the meeting. 
 
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1091&MId=10248 
 
 
 
  
 

Public Document Pack

https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1091&MId=10248


 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting). 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

1. To highlight reports or appendices which 
officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2. To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3. If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 

RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows: 

 
No exempt items have been identified. 

 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 

 

6   
 

  CALL IN BRIEFING PAPER 
 
To consider a report from the Head of Democratic 
Services advising the Scrutiny Board on the 
procedural aspects of calling in the decision. 
 

5 - 10 

7   
 

  REVENUE BUDGET UPDATE 2021/2022 AND 
BUDGET SAVING PROPOSALS - RESOLUTION 
77(C) 
 
To consider a report from the Head of Democratic 
Services presenting the background papers to an 
Executive Board decision which has been called in 
in accordance with the Council’s constitution.  
 
The call in relates to resolution 77(c) as recorded 
in the draft minutes of the meeting of 18 November 
2020 and relates to Revenue budget Update 
2021/2022 and Budget Saving Proposals. 
 

11 - 
76 

8   
 

  OUTCOME OF THE CALL IN 
 
To consider the Scrutiny Board’s formal 
conclusions and recommendations arising from the 
consideration of the called-in decision. 
 

 



 

 
D 

9   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The Board’s next meeting will take place on 14 
January 2020 at 10.30am. There will be a pre-meet 
for all Board members at 10am. 
 

 



 

 

 

Report of the Head of Democratic Services 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Environment, Housing and Communities) 

Date: 2 December 2020 

Subject: Call In Briefing Paper 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, an Executive Board decision has been 
Called In.  The background papers to this particular decision are set out as a separate 
agenda item and appropriate witnesses have been invited to give supporting evidence. 

 
2. This report advises the Scrutiny Board on the procedural aspects of Calling In the 

decision. 
 
3. The Board is advised that the Call In is specific to the report considered by the 

Executive Board and issues outside of this decision, including other related decisions, 
may not be considered as part of the Board’s decision regarding the outcome of the Call 
In. 

 
Recommendations 
 
4. The Scrutiny Board is asked to note the contents of this report and to adopt the 

procedure as detailed within it. 
 
  

 
Report author:  Rebecca Atherton 

Tel:  0113 37 88642 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 

1 Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, an Executive Board decision has been 

Called In. The background papers to this particular decision are set out as a separate 
agenda item and appropriate witnesses have been invited to give supporting evidence. 

 
1.2 This report advises the Scrutiny Board on the procedural aspects of Calling In the 

decision. 
 
2 Background information 
 
2.1 The Call In process provides the facility for the Scrutiny Board to require a decision taker 

to reconsider a decision within a specified time period.  This is a separate function from 
the Scrutiny Board’s ability to review decisions already taken and implemented. The 
eligibility of an Executive Board decision for Call In is indicated in the minutes.  

 
3 Main issues 

3.1 The Board is advised that the Call In is specific to the report considered by the 
Executive Board and issues outside of this decision, including other related decisions, 
may not be considered as part of the Board’s decision regarding the outcome of the 
Call In.  

Reviewing the decision 
 
3.2 Because of the unique nature of Call In, particularly with regard to the requirement to 

conclude the meeting with a recommendation in one sitting, it is important that the 
meeting has a managed framework. The Scrutiny Board is therefore recommended to 
adopt the following process: 

 The Members who signed the Call In request will outline their reasons for calling in 
the decision, defining their concerns and explaining what remedial action they wish 
to see. If the Chair has agreed in advance that they may be accompanied by other 
witnesses, these witnesses will also be given the opportunity to briefly outline their 
concerns in relation to the decision in question. 

 Members of the Scrutiny Board will ask any questions and points of clarification. 

 The Executive Member(s) and/or officer(s) who are representing the decision maker 
will then be invited to introduce themselves and respond to the issues raised by the 
Call In request. 

 Members of the Scrutiny Board will ask any questions and points of clarification.  

 If necessary, this stage may involve further questioning by Board members of the 
witnesses in support of the Call In request.  

 For the avoidance of doubt, there is no provision for the witnesses to cross-question 
one another. 

 A representative on behalf of each of the parties to the Call In will be invited to sum 
up. The representative of the decision maker will be invited to sum up first if they 
wish to do so. Following this, the representative of the signatories to the Call In 
request will be invited to sum up having heard the discussion. 

 The Scrutiny Board will then proceed to make its decision in relation to the Call In. 

 

Page 6



 

 Options available to the Board 
 
3.3 Having reviewed the decision, the Scrutiny Board will need to agree what action it 

wishes to take. In doing so, it may pursue one of two courses of action as set out 
below: 

 
Option 1- Release the decision for implementation 
 

3.4 Having reviewed this decision, the Scrutiny Board may decide to release it for 
implementation.  If the Scrutiny Board chooses this option, the decision will be 
immediately released for implementation and the decision may not be Called In again. 

 
Option 2 - Recommend that the decision be reconsidered. 

 
3.5 The Scrutiny Board may decide to recommend to the decision maker that the decision 

be reconsidered.  If the Scrutiny Board chooses this option a report will be submitted 
to the decision maker.  

 
3.6 In the case of an Executive Board decision, the report of the Scrutiny Board will be 

prepared within three working days of the Scrutiny Board meeting and submitted to the 
Executive Board. Any report of the Scrutiny Board will be referred to the next 
 Executive Board meeting for consideration.   

 
3.7 In reconsidering the decision and associated Scrutiny Board report, the Executive 

Board may vary the decision or confirm its original decision.  In either case, this will 
form the basis of the final decision and will not be subject to any further call-in. 

 
Failure to agree one of the above options 
 

3.8 If the Scrutiny Board, for any reason, does not agree one of the above courses of 
action at this meeting, then Option 1 will be adopted by default, i.e. the decision will be 
released for implementation with no further recourse to Call In. 

 
Formulating the Board’s report 

 
3.9 If the Scrutiny Board decides to release the decision for implementation (i.e. Option 1), 

then the Scrutiny Support Unit will process the necessary notifications and no 
 further action is required by the Board.  

 
3.10 If the Scrutiny Board wishes to recommend that the decision be reconsidered (i.e. 

Option 2), then it will be necessary for the Scrutiny Board to agree a report setting out 
its recommendation together with any supporting commentary.  

 
3.11 Due to the tight timescales within which a decision Call In must operate, it is important 

that the Scrutiny Board’s report be agreed at the meeting. 
 
3.12 If the Scrutiny Board decides to pursue Option 2, it is proposed that there be a short 

adjournment during which the Chair, in conjunction with the Scrutiny Support Unit, 
should prepare a brief statement proposing the Scrutiny Board’s draft 
recommendations and supporting commentary. Upon reconvening, the Scrutiny Board 
will be invited to amend/agree this statement as appropriate (a separate item has been 
included on the agenda for this purpose). 

 

Page 7



 

3.13 This statement will then form the basis of the Scrutiny Board’s report (together with 
factual information as to details of the Called In decision, lists of witnesses, evidence 
considered, Members involved in the Call In process etc). 

 
3.14 The Scrutiny Board is advised that there is no provision within the Call In procedure for 

the submission of a Minority Report. 
 
4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 Prior to submitting a Call In, a nominated signatory must first contact the relevant 
officer or Executive Member to discuss their concerns and their reasons for wanting to 
call in the decision. Part of this discussion must include the Member ascertaining the 
financial implications of requesting a Call In. The details of this discussion should be 
referenced on the Call In Request Form. 

 
4.1.2 The background papers to this particular decision will make reference to any internal 

or external consultation processes that have been undertaken in relation to the 
decision.  

 
4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The background papers to this particular decision will make reference to any impact on 
equality areas, as defined in the Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme.  

 
4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 
 
4.3.1 The background papers to this particular decision will make reference to any Council 

Policies and City Priorities relevant to the decision.  
 
4.4 Resources and Value for Money  
 
4.4.1 The background papers to this particular decision will make reference to any 

significant resource and financial implications linked to the decision.  
 
4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information.   

4.5.2 The background papers to this particular decision will make reference to any legal 
implications linked to the decision. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The background papers to this particular decision will make reference to any risk 
management issues linked to the decision. 

 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, an Executive Board decision has been 
Called In. This report advises the Scrutiny Board on the procedural aspects of Calling 
In the decision.   

Page 8



 

 
5.2 In particular, the Board is advised that the Call In is specific to the report considered by 

Executive Board at its meeting on 21 October 2020 and issues outside of this decision, 
including other related decisions, may not be considered as part of the Board’s 
decision regarding the outcome of the Call In. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 The Scrutiny Board is asked to note the contents of this report and to adopt the 
procedure as detailed within it. 
 

7 Background documents1  

7.1 none 

 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Head of Democratic Services 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Environment, Housing and Communities) 

Date: 2 December 2020 

Subject:  Call In – Revenue budget Update 2021/2022 and Budget Saving Proposals, 
resolution 77(c) 
 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):    
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:  
 

Summary of main issues  

1. This paper presents the background papers to a decision which has been Called In  
 in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. 
 
2.     Papers are attached as follows: 

 Copy of the completed Call In request form 

 Report of Chief Officer Financial Services presented to Executive Board at its meeting 
on 18 November 2020. 

 Extract from the draft minutes of the Executive Board meeting held on 18 November 
2020.  

 
3. Appropriate Members and officers have been invited to attend the meeting in order          

to explain the decision and respond to questions.  

Recommendations 
 
4. The Scrutiny Board (Environment, Housing and Communities) is asked to review this 

decision and to determine what further action it wishes to take. 
 
Background documents1 

5. None used 

                                            
1  The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 

unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

 Report author: Rebecca Atherton  

Tel:  0113 37 88642 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Leeds City Council Scrutiny Support  

For further information on the Call In procedure please contact the Scrutiny Support Unit on 39 51151 

Discussion with Decision Maker: 
Prior to submitting a Call In, a nominated signatory must first contact the relevant 
officer or Executive Member to discuss their concerns and their reasons for wanting 
to call in the decision.  Part of this discussion must include the Member ascertaining 
the financial implications of requesting a Call In. 
 
Please identify contact and provide detail. 

X Director/author of delegated decision report. 

 Executive Board Member 

 
Detail of discussion (to include financial implications)  

…………………………………………………………………
……E mail exchange on the reasons for call in including 
relevant revenue 
savings………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…… 

CALL IN REQUEST  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
Date of decision publication  18th November 2020 
 
Delegated decision ref: ……………………………………………………….…….……or  
 
Executive Board Minute no: …77c……………Revenue budget Update 2021/2022 and 
budget saving proposals.……………………………………………… 
 
Decision description: ……Revenue budget update 2121/22 and budget saving 
proposals…………………………………………………………..……. 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………..….. 
 
………………………………………………………………………………………….…... 
 

Page 13



Leeds City Council Scrutiny Support  

For further information on the Call In procedure please contact the Scrutiny Support Unit on 39 51151 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reasons for Call In: 
All requests for Call In must detail why, in the opinion of the signatories, the decision 
was not taken in accordance with the principles set out in Article 13 of the Council 
constitution (decision making) (principles of decision making) or where relevant issues 
do not appear to be taken into consideration. Please tick the relevant box(es) and 
give an explanation. 
 

X Proportionality (ie the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome) 

 Due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers 

 Respect for human rights 

 A presumption in favour of openness 

 Clarity of aims and desired outcomes 

 An explanation of the options considered and details of the reasons for the decision 

X Positive promotion of equal opportunities 

X Natural justice 

 
Explanation ……………………………………………………………………………………. 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………
The decision we have concerns with relate to the proposed closure of the Lewisham 
Park Centre in Morley. The financial case presented for closure is flawed in as much 
as it was claimed staffing costs were over £21,000 a year. These costings related to 
the time Lewisham had a full-time caretaker at the Centre which it has not had for 
many years. The proposed savings amount to around £13,000 without staff costs 
(which could be avoided by having a key holder process) and charges – such as over 
£4000 for water costs can be easily reduced by introducing a water meter. 
The closure of this Community Centre will have a significant impact on the most 
deprived community in the Outer South area and there are no realistic alternatives to 
serve this community. This decision does contravene proportionality as the revenue 
savings are small compared to the significant impact this decision will have on 
residents, the young, the old, the disabled and families. It is a breach of equal 
opportunities as this community centre serves a deprived community – the most 
deprived community in the Outer South Community Committee area but other centres 
in more affluent areas in Ardsley and Robin Hood are not proposed for closure. It is a 
breach of natural justice as the poor and most deprived should not be paying the price 
for the economic challenge Leeds City Council 
faces..……………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………… 

Page 14



Leeds City Council Scrutiny Support  

For further information on the Call In procedure please contact the Scrutiny Support Unit on 39 51151 

A Call-In request may be made by a minimum of: 
 
5 non-executive Members of council from the same political group. 
or.  
2 non-executive Members of council if they are not from the same political 
group. 
 
This Call-In request should be submitted to Scrutiny Support, 1st Floor West, Civic 
Hall by 5.00pm by no later than the fifth working day after the decision publication 
date.         The following signatories (original signatures only) request that the 
above decision be called in. 
 

 

Nominated Signatory .  
 
Print name: Cllr Robert Finnigan 
Political Group: MBI 
 
 
 

Signature:  
 
Print name: Cllr Wyn Kidger 
Political Group: MBI 
 
 
 

Signature  
 
Print name: Cllr Andy Hutchison 
Political Group: MBI 
 
 
 

Signature:  
 
Print name : Cllr Judith Elliott 
Political Group: MBI 
 
 
 
Signature:   
 
Print name : Cllr Robert Gettings 
Political Group: MBI 
 
 
 

Page 15



Leeds City Council Scrutiny Support  

For further information on the Call In procedure please contact the Scrutiny Support Unit on 39 51151 

 
 
 
 

Signature…………………………. …. ……………………………….. 
 
Print name …. …………………………. ………………………………… 
 
Political Group…………………………………………………………...... 
 
 
 
Signature…………………………. …. ……………………………….. 
 
Print name …. …………………………. ………………………………… 
 
Political Group…………………………………………………………...... 
 
 
 
Signature…………………………. …. ……………………………….. 
 
Print name …. …………………………. ………………………………… 
 
Political Group…………………………………………………………...... 
 
 
 
Signature…………………………. …. ……………………………….. 
 
Print name …. …………………………. ………………………………… 
 
Political Group…………………………………………………………...... 
 
 
 

Signature…………………………. …. ……………………………… 
 
Print name …. …………………………. ………………………………… 
 
Political Group…………………………………………………………...... 
 
 
 

Signature…………………………. …. ……………………………….. 
 
Print name …. …………………………. ………………………………… 
 
Political Group…………………………………………………………...... 
 
 
 

Page 16



Leeds City Council Scrutiny Support  

For further information on the Call In procedure please contact the Scrutiny Support Unit on 39 51151 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 . 

For office use only: (box A) 
 
Received on behalf of the Head of Democratic Services by: 
 
Rebecca Atherton …………………………………………………………………………..….  
 
Date: 24 November 2020 Time: 9.23am SSU ref: 2020/21-57/73 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For office use only: (box B) 
   
Exemption status   Call In authorised:  Yes  
checked: 
     Signed: Rebecca Atherton 
Date checked:     
 
Signatures checked:   Date: 24 November 2020 
 
 
Receipts given:     
 
 
Validity re article 13 
 
 
 
 
Receipt details: …………………………………………………………..………………………….. 

x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Report author: Victoria Bradshaw 
Tel: 88540 

Report of the Chief Officer – Financial Services 
Report to Executive Board 
Date: 18th November 2020 
Subject: Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals 

Are specific electoral wards affected?   Yes  No 

If yes, name(s) of ward(s):  

Has consultation been carried out?   Yes  No 

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?   Yes  No 

Will the decision be open for call-in?   Yes  No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes  No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number: N/A 
Appendix number: N/A 

 
Summary  

Main issues 

• The Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 - 2025/26 considered at September’s 
Executive Board meeting reported an estimated budget gap of £166.3m for the period 
of the strategy, of which £118.8m relates to 2021/22.  Of this £118.8m, £59.7m is due 
to pressures identified prior to the impact of COVID-19 with the balance of £59.1m 
resulting from the ongoing financial impact of COVID-19. 

• In response to this financial position, the council has established a ‘Financial 
Challenge’ programme of service reviews to identify savings that will contribute towards 
closing the estimated budget gap and enable the authority to present a robust, 
balanced budget position in 2021/22.  In line with the council’s ambitions and values, 
these aim to protect services that support the most vulnerable whilst ensuring that the 
council becomes more financially resilient and sustainable for the future.     

• The saving proposals resulting from these reviews are categorised as either ‘Business 
as Usual’ proposals which can be implemented within the council’s delegated decision-
making framework and without consultation, or ‘Service Reviews’ which will require 
meaningful consultation with relevant stakeholders prior to any decisions being taken.  
The results of any such consultation with staff, trade unions, service users and the 
public will be used to inform the final decision.   

• Executive Board has already approved two sets of savings proposals for 2021/22 
through its September and October meetings.  Combined with £0.3m savings resulting 
from a review of the capital programme and a reduction of 50 full-time equivalent (FTE) 

Page 19



posts through a review of the Housing Revenue Account, these total £40.5m with an 
anticipated reduction in the workforce of 617.1 FTEs.  

• A further £17.6m potential savings are presented for consideration today with an 
anticipated reduction in the workforce of 199.4 FTE budgeted posts.  If today’s 
proposals are approved, taken together with the £40.5m proposals previously 
approved, the total savings proposals identified so far of £58.2m (rounded) will reduce 
the estimated budget gap for 2021/22 to £60.6m.  The total anticipated reduction in the 
workforce is 816.5 FTEs.  All efforts will be made to avoid compulsory redundancies.   

• The updated financial position for next year, including the key implications of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review and any further Government announcements, will be 
reported to this Board in December through the Provisional Budget 2021/22.  That 
report will also include additional savings proposals to enable a balanced budget in 
2021/22.        

1. Best Council Plan Implications (see the latest version of the Best Council Plan) 
• The Best Council Plan is the council’s strategic plan which sets out its ambitions, 

outcomes and priorities for the city and the authority.  These can only be delivered 
through a sound understanding of the organisation’s longer-term financial sustainability 
which enables decisions to be made that balance the resource implications of the 
council’s policies against financial constraints. This is the primary purpose of the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy which then provides the framework for the 
determination of the authority’s annual revenue budgets.  

2. Resource Implications 
• The savings proposals presented in this report will impact upon all the council’s 

resources, including its staff, assets and finances.  The financial implications are 
detailed in the report. 

Recommendations 
• Executive Board is requested to:  

a) Note the financial position for 2021/22 outlined in this report and that further 
savings are required to deliver a balanced budget position; 

b) Note the ‘Business as Usual’ savings and that decisions to give effect to them 
shall be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer in accordance with the 
Officer delegation scheme (Executive functions);  

c) Agree the recommendations in the ‘Service Review’ proposals at Appendix 2b 
and that consultation commences.  And to note that decisions to give effect to 
them shall be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer, following the 
consultation period, in accordance with the Officer delegation scheme (Executive 
functions) save where the Leader, relevant portfolio holder or Director considers 
that the matter should be referred to Executive Board for consideration. 

 

Page 20

https://www.leeds.gov.uk/your-council/plans-and-strategies/council-plans


1. Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report details the actions underway and proposed to address the financial gap 
for 2021/22 which is currently estimated at £118.8m.  The report presents a series of 
savings proposals to contribute to the council achieving a balanced budget for  
2021/22 Budget and, where appropriate, seeks agreement to begin meaningful 
consultation with staff, trade unions, service users and the public as required.   

2. Background information 

2.1 A report received at this Board in June set out the impact that the COVID-19 
pandemic is having upon the council’s financial position in 2020/21 and 2021/22.  
Updates have since been provided to the Executive Board on the 2020/21 position 
through monthly Financial Health reports.  The latest Financial Health report is 
included on today’s agenda and now projects an overspend in this financial year of 
£30.5m at Month 6.   

2.2 The Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 to 2025/26 received at this Board in 
September further detailed the significant financial uncertainties resulting from 
COVID-19 and how this will continue to impact upon the council’s financial position 
for the period covered by the strategy.  The report also noted the significant increase 
in Government borrowing as a result of the pandemic.  Plans to address the 
increasing Government deficit – and what this means for local government – are 
anticipated through the Comprehensive Spending Review around the end of 
November (the date is, at the time of writing, yet to be announced) which, instead of 
the originally planned multi-year spending review, will now be a one-year review to 
set departmental resource and capital budgets for 2021/22.  The Chancellor has, 
however, confirmed that those areas of public spending deemed more critical to the 
country’s economic recovery will receive longer-term settlements; this includes the 
NHS, infrastructure and schools. 

2.3 The council’s financial position and the estimated budget gap for the period covered 
by the Medium Term Financial Strategy need to be seen against a backdrop of 
ongoing national economic uncertainty, which means the council will continue to 
have to make some difficult decisions on how and where it allocates its capital and 
revenue resources in order to deliver its priorities as set out in the Best Council Plan. 

2.4 With regard to 2021/22, the authority’s estimated financial gap is £118.8m.  To start 
to reduce that gap, an initial set of savings proposals were considered and approved 
by this Board at its September and October meetings (available at Item 43 here and 
Item 21 here respectively).  Today’s report presents a third set of proposals for 
consideration.   

3. Main issues 

Revenue Budget 2021/22: Service reviews 
3.1 A ‘Financial Challenge’ programme of service reviews has been established to 

identify savings that will contribute towards closing the estimated revenue budget gap 
and enable the authority to present a balanced budget position in 2021/22.  These 
comprise several cross-council reviews and others that relate to individual services; a 
small number of more complex reviews have received external, independent support. 

Page 21

http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=102&MId=9976&Ver=4
http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=102&MId=9977&Ver=4


• The cross-council reviews include those relating to activities that the council has 
been pursuing for some time, such as a review of business administration, mail 
and print expenditure reduction and changing the workplace.  More recently 
identified reviews include reducing the wage bill, estate rationalisation (building 
on the long-standing changing the workplace programme), procurement, 
customer contact and workforce development.  Reports on estate rationalisation 
and accelerating capital receipts were considered by this Board at its 
September and October meetings (Item 46 available here and Item 22 available 
here respectively) with a further update elsewhere on today’s agenda. 

• In addition to the cross-council reviews, directorates have also carried out 
reviews of all services, working towards an indicative target saving of 10% of 
gross expenditure or 20% of net expenditure for each directorate.   

3.2 The Financial Challenge programme is being carried out across all services with a 
cross-council ‘Silver’ group set up to provide support and ensure a co-ordinated, 
consistent approach.  Directors have carried out peer reviews of each other’s 
emerging proposals to provide additional high support and high challenge and 
Scrutiny Board working groups have also been set up to consider proposals brought 
to this Executive Board and for further support and challenge to identify new 
proposals.   

3.3 The outcome from the reviews has led to a set of savings proposals which are 
categorised as either ‘Business as Usual’ (BAU) or ‘Service Review’ proposals: 

• BAU proposals are those that do not require consultation to implement: for 
example, they relate to improving the efficiency of the service, are cost 
reduction measures with no impact on service users or, where there are 
budgeted staffing reductions, these are anticipated to be met through deletion of 
vacant posts or voluntary means, as has been collectively agreed.  Where 
voluntary measures have a modest and/or residual impact on the workforce, 
local / BAU consultation would be expected.   

• Service Review proposals (some cross-council, some service-specific) are 
those requiring consultation: for example, the way in which a service is 
delivered or the level of service provided is impacted and so meaningful 
consultation with service users is needed; and/or the proposal relates to a 
significant internal restructure, requiring consultation with trade unions and staff.   

3.4 A summary of the BAU proposals is provided at Appendix 1.  The total value of these 
proposals is £14.4m. 

3.5 The Service Review proposals are summarised at Appendix with a total value of 
£3.2m.  Executive summaries and equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
screening documents for each Service Review proposal are also provided at 
Appendix 2b.  

3.6 Any new savings identified from the cross-council reviews have been captured within 
the BAU and Service Review proposals.    

3.7 The combined value of the BAU and Service Review proposals set out in today’s 
report is £17.6m.   

3.8 Further savings proposals to address the remaining estimated budget gap will be 
brought to this Board in December as part of the Provisional Budget report. 

3.9 In additional, a strategic approach with regard to the level of savings which can be 
achieved in 2021/22 is currently being considered with further alternative measures 

Page 22

http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=102&MId=9976&Ver=4
http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=102&MId=9977&Ver=4


being explored that will take into account this autumn’s Comprehensive Spending 
Review and subsequent local government provisional financial settlement in 
December.          

General Fund: Revenue Budget 2021/22 - savings proposed 

3.10 Table 1 summarises the proposals set out in this report for the Board’s consideration.   

Directorate 

Business as Usual Service reviews Total 
2021/22 
savings / 

£'000s 

FTE 
budgeted 

posts 

2021/22 
savings / 

£'000s 

FTE 
budgeted 

posts 

2021/22 
savings / 

£'000s 

FTE 
budgeted 

posts 
Adults & Health 6,192 1.0 2,104 -38.0 8,296 -37.0 
Children & Families 949 -6.5 912 -1.0 1,861 -7.5 
City Development 3,000 -97.9 0 0.0 3,000 -97.9 
Communities & Environment 1,616 -16.0 200 -2.0 1,816 -18.0 
Resources & Housing 2,664 -39.0 0 0.0 2,664 -39.0 

 
14,421 -158.4 3,216 -41.0 17,637 -199.4 

Table 1: Summary of 2021/22 Revenue Budget Savings Proposals for November Exec Board  

3.11 Should these proposals be approved, the estimated budget gap for 2021/22 would 
be reduced to £60.6m. 

2021/22 £'m £'m 
 Estimated budget gap  118.8 
 

    Capital programme review   
 September Executive Board  -0.3 
     

Savings proposals    September Executive Board -32.3 
  October Executive Board -7.9 
  November Executive Board -17.6   

  
-57.9 (rounded) 

    Revised estimated budget gap  60.6 
 

Table 2: Revised budget gap 

Staffing implications  
3.12 The implications of the savings proposals set out in today’s report project a potential 

reduction of 199.4 FTE budgeted posts.  Combined with the proposals approved at 
September’s and October’s Executive Board meetings (617.1 FTE budgeted post 
reductions – including 50 HRA-funded FTE posts), the total potential reduction is 
816.5 FTE budgeted posts.  

3.13 The council issued a Section 188 Notice to the trade unions in June 2020 
confirming our duty to consult and to avoid, reduce and mitigate the risk and 
consequences of compulsory redundancies.  Pursuant to the council’s Managing 
Staff Reductions Policy, a range of voluntary measures are now being progressed, 

Page 23



including early retirement, flexible retirement, severance and other voluntary 
changes to working patterns.  The expressions of interest in the voluntary leavers’ 
scheme were very high and, following the scheme’s closure at the end of 
September, decision-making is now taking place over October and November. 
1,992 expressions of interest were received and, of these, 1,058 colleagues have 
reaffirmed their interest in leaving under the Early Leavers’ Initiative (ELI) scheme: 
900 through voluntary retirement, 158 through voluntary severance.  As of the 2nd 
November 2020, 126 of these people have exited the organisation.  A collectively 
agreed framework has been established to ensure meaningful and frequent 
consultation with trade unions and staff.  

4. Corporate considerations 

4.1 Consultation and engagement  

4.1.1 Senior officers and elected members have been engaged in developing the savings 
proposals set out in today’s report.  Trade unions have also been informed in 
headline terms of the emerging proposals.  Where required, further consultation and 
engagement will be carried out with staff, trade unions, service users and the public 
as appropriate on the Service Review proposals set out at Appendix 2.   

4.1.2 Scrutiny Boards have considered the September Executive Board proposals as 
relevant to their remits through their October meetings and will also carry out further 
consideration of the October and November Executive Board proposals.   

4.1.3 The outcomes of any consultation will inform the council’s decision-making and be 
incorporated into the 2021/22 to 2023/24 Budget Report (including the Provisional 
Budget 2021/22) timetabled for initial consideration at December’s Executive Board.     

4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote equality of opportunity. The law 
requires that the duty to pay “due regard” be demonstrated in the decision making 
process. Assessing the potential equality impact of proposed changes to policies, 
procedures and practices is one of the key ways in which public authorities can 
show due regard.  

4.2.2 The council is fully committed to ensuring that equality and diversity are given 
proper consideration when we develop policies and make decisions. In order to 
achieve this, the council has an agreed process in place and has particularly 
promoted the importance of the process when taking forward key policy or 
budgetary changes. Equality impact assessments also ensure that we make well 
informed decisions based on robust evidence. 

4.2.3 Equality impact screenings have been carried out on the service review savings 
proposals and included with those proposals at Appendix 2. Where appropriate, 
equality impact assessments will be carried out as part of the decision-making 
process.   

4.3 Council policies and the Best Council Plan 

4.3.1 The Best Council Plan sets out the council’s ambitions, outcomes and priorities for 
the organisation and the city, many delivered in partnership. The current plan is 
therefore aligned with both the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy and its 
annual budget.  To help mitigate the pressures on the financial sustainability of the 

Page 24



council – significantly exacerbated by the impacts of COVID-19 - it is imperative that 
the proposals contained in this report are considered in order that the council’s 
strategic priorities can be delivered within a robust financial framework. 

Climate Emergency 

4.3.2 There are no specific implications for the climate emergency resulting from this 
report. 

4.4 Resources, procurement and value for money 

4.4.1 All resources, procurement and value for money implications are considered in the 
summary and main body of the report. 

4.5 Legal implications, access to information, and call-in  

4.5.1 Decisions giving effect to the Business as Usual proposals included in this report 
can be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer in accordance with the Officer 
Scheme of delegation (Executive functions) and will be subject to the Executive and 
decision – making procedure rules. Notice of any decision which is “Key” will be 
published on the list of forthcoming decision not less than 28 clear calendar days in 
advance of the date of the proposed decision. 

4.5.2 Decisions giving effect to the Service Reviews will be made following the outcome 
of consultation having regard to representations made.  Decisions will be taken by 
the relevant Director or Chief Officer following the procedure set out in paragraph 
4.5.1 above, save where the Leader or the relevant Portfolio Holder has directed or 
the Director considers that the matter should be referred to Executive Board for 
consideration. 

4.5.3 As a decision of Executive Board, the recommendations in this report are eligible for 
call-in. 

4.6 Risk management 

4.6.1 The financial projections for 2021/22 contain a number of inherent risks even 
without taking account of the impact of COVID-19.  These include risks associated 
with budgets which are subject to fluctuating demand and demographic pressures 
and key income budgets that rely upon the number of users of a service.  In 
addition the approved Budget makes assumptions in respect of the level of 
resources that are receivable through council tax, business rates and government 
grants.   

4.6.2 Factoring in the impact of COVID-19, the financial position for 2021/22 makes a 
number of assumptions around income, expenditure and collection rates for both 
Business Rates and Council Tax – the pandemic will continue to affect the levels 
that can be collected.  Any variations from these assumptions has implications for 
the level of resources available to the council to fund services. 

4.6.3 There also remain uncertainties around the impacts of the Government’s 
forthcoming one-year Comprehensive Spending Review, business rates reform and 
Fair Funding Review and Government’s intentions for the future funding of social 
care.   

4.6.4 These risks and assumptions will be subject to review as more information 
becomes available and through the council’s financial management, monitoring and 
reporting processes. 

Page 25



4.6.5 This report contains several budget saving proposals that will be subject to 
consultation. There remains a risk that there is slippage in the implementation of 
these proposals or that the assumptions contained in these proposals change as a 
result of the consultation exercises. This could lead to a variation in the assumed 
level of savings and the council’s ability to set a balanced budget for 2021/22.  

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The council faces an unprecedented financial challenge with an estimated budget 
gap for 2021/22 of £118.8m.  In response, the authority has carried out a review of 
its capital programme and established a ‘Financial Challenge’ programme of service 
reviews to identify savings that will contribute towards closing the estimated budget 
gap and enable the authority to present a robust, balanced budget position in 
2021/22.  These aim to protect services that support the most vulnerable whilst 
ensuring that the organisation becomes more financially resilient and sustainable for 
the future.  

5.2 Thus far, £58.2m (rounded) of savings have been identified through the reviews 
(£40.5m approved at September’s and October’s Executive Board meeting, 
including £0.3m from the capital programme review, and a further £17.6m for 
consideration through this report).  The £58.2m would reduce the estimated gap for 
next year from £118.8m to £60.6m.  Work continues to identify further savings with 
proposals to come to this Board in December through the Provisonal Budget 
2021/22 report. 

5.3 Meaningful consultation will be carried out with staff, trade unions, service users 
and the public on proposals as required with the results used to inform the decisions 
taken in respect of Service Reviews.      

6. Recommendations  

6.1 Executive Board is requested to: 
a) Note the financial position for 2021/22 outlined in this report and that further 

savings are required to deliver a balanced budget position; 
b) Note the ‘Business as Usual’ savings and that decisions to give effect to them 

shall be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer in accordance with the 
Officer delegation scheme (Executive functions); and 

c) Agree the recommendations in the ‘Service Review’ proposals at Appendix 2b 
and that consultation commences.  And to note that decisions to give effect to 
them shall be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer, following the 
consultation period, in accordance with the Officer delegation scheme 
(Executive functions) save where the Leader, relevant portfolio holder or 
Director considers that the matter should be referred to Executive Board for 
consideration. 

7. Background documents1  

7.1 None 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they 
contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include published works. 

Page 26



 
 

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board November 2020 
 

Appendix 1: ‘Business as Usual’ 2021/22 savings proposals  

Table 1: Adults & Health Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving  
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

The council's Financial Strategy made provision of £1.4m to maintain the link between the wage uplift for home care 
services and the previous year’s internal Council Living Wage Rates. Given the council's overall financial challenge and 
the lower prevailing inflation rate than that assumed in the strategy it is proposed that the allocation is reduced by 
50%. This will still provide for an above inflation uplift for these employees and maintains our progress towards 
achieving the Ethical Care Charter for Home Care staff.   

700 0.0 

Reduction in grants to support commissioned services for working age adults 162 0.0 
A detailed review of all expenditure heads within the Adults & Health budget has been undertaken to identify where 
budgets have not been fully spent over the last 2 years. In conjunction with budget holders a number of budget lines 
across the directorate have been reduced accordingly. 

479 0.0 

The first wave of the Covid pandemic disproportionally impacted old and vulnerable people. The numbers of people 
supported in care homes fell substantially in March and April 2020, and demand for care home placements has been 
slow to recover. Whilst this trend has to some extent been offset by increased demands for care being provided in 
people's own homes, overall there has been a rebasing of these demand budgets as a result. Whilst this is a best 
estimate of the rebasing of the budget, this position assumes that there is currently no significant level of unmet need 
masked by changes to lifestyles during the pandemic.  

2,400 0.0 

The council's Financial Strategy provided for inflation on the non-pay elements of contracts at 2%. The CPI rate recently 
has been as low as 0.1% and therefore it is proposed not to award any non-pay inflation within the annual uplift for 
care contracts for 21/22. 

1,614 0.0 

Since the advent of the National Living Wage the Council has provided for and awarded fee uplifts to providers on the 
basis of inflating all provider employee costs by the NLW increase, including the impact upon differentials. Given the 
current financial challenge faced by the Council it is proposed to limit the provision for the NLW element of fee uplifts 
to those staff being paid at the NLW. 

500 0.0 

Working in conjunction with the contract provider LYPFT, it is proposed to develop Supported Living Individual Service 
Agreements (SLISA) recognising the individual needs of service users, together with a review of the staffing skill mix 
required to meet the changing needs of service users.  

250 0.0 

The Leadership Academy was established as part of the Care Quality Team within the Commissioning Service to drive 
up quality within Independent Sector Care Homes in Leeds. The Academy has been extremely successful and has 
earned 'Centre of Excellence' status with Skills for Care. This has attracted both National Providers and other local 

30 1.0 

P
age 27



 
 

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board November 2020 
 

Table 1: Adults & Health Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving  
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

authorities in the region who wish to buy in this service. This will require an additional training post, but will also 
deliver a net surplus in income. 
This contract, which has supported the matching and analysis of client level health and social care data, is coming to an 
end. The City Digital team based within DIS are now able to provide this service, thus this contract will not be renewed. 57 0.0 

Total ‘BAU’ Adults & Health 2021/22 savings 6,192 1.0 
 

Table 2: Children & Families Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving 
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

Proposal to increase the use of transport allowances for foster carers and to review the authorisation required for staff 
to book taxis for Children Looked After, in order to encourage alternative travel arrangements. 195 0.0 

Proposal to achieve savings through the integration of teams. 100 -2.0 
Proposal to hold the current vacancy for the Deputy Director of Learning until September 2021. 47 -1.0 
Proposal to cease the contribution to DSG for Post 16 costs, as these should be funded by DSG. 100 0.0 
Proposal to make efficiencies by integrating management function in Children and Families and Adult Services 
Occupational Therapy teams. 37 -0.5 

Proposal to recognise that DSG funding will increase in 2021/22 due to inflation already assumed in the DSG budget. 100 0.0 
Proposal to cease some contracts. 230 0.0 
Proposal to achieve efficiencies associated with the Local Children’s Safeguarding Partnership as it is integrated with 
the Children and Families Trust Board. 40 -1.0 

Proposal to carry out a review of Performance and Intelligence. This proposal assumes that savings can be achieved 
through ELI. If this is not the case then a service review report will be required. 100 -2.0 

Total ‘BAU’ Children & Families 2021/22 savings 949 -6.5 
 

P
age 28



 
 

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board November 2020 
 

Table 3: City Development Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving 
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

Savings across all areas of the directorate delivered by means of staff reductions facilitated by the council's Early 
Leavers' Initiative and/or additional voluntary measures, e.g. flexible retirement 1,500 -97.9 

Reductions in inflation allowances across the directorate. This is in addition to inflation allowances reductions agreed at 
September Executive Board of £800,000 250 0.0 

Further reductions in budgeted income pressures arising from COVID-19 across the directorate  1,000 0.0 
Reductions in miscellaneous spend budgets across the directorate (projects, consumables, furniture etc.).  250 0.0 

Total ‘BAU’ City Development 2021/22 savings 3,000 -97.9 
 

Table 4: Communities and Environment Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving 
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

Estimated savings across the directorate delivered by staff reductions facilitated by the council's Early Leavers' Initiative 
and/or additional voluntary measures, e.g. flexible retirement 500 -16.0 

Continue to utilise Section 106 balances to support the revenue budget for a further year, reducing the pressure 
currently shown in the Medium Term Financial Strategy   466 0.0 

Following review, reduce the level of Housing Benefit Overpayment income pressure currently included in the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. 100 0.0 

Increase in vacancy factor to 3.9% to reflect turnover experienced in recent years 200 0.0 
Defer part of the planned investment in the Waste Strategy recognising delays due to Covid-19 pressures, which will 
reduce the pressure currently included in the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  200 0.0 

Review of Single Person Discount Council Tax claimants to reduce fraudulent claims 150 0.0 

Total ‘BAU’ Communities & Environment 2021/22 savings 1,616 -16.0 
 

P
age 29



 
 

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board November 2020 
 

Table 5: Resources & Housing Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving 
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

Cross-council savings from reduction in taxi usage by staff attending council meetings.  Savings will be delivered within 
services. 100 0.0 

Additional early leavers and deletion of resulting vacant posts across the directorate 810 -27.0 
As part of the cross-council review of the Business Administration Service approved by the Executive Board in 
September 2020, additional savings identified through review of meeting support. 250 0.0 

Digital Information Services (DIS): Reduction in financial pressures already built into the medium-term financial strategy 300 0.0 
Human Resources (HR): One-year pause in council's graduate recruitment scheme in September 2021 160 0.0 
Reduced travel costs across the directorate arising from new ways of working 125 0.0 
Savings in DIS and HR through line-by-line review of non-staffing costs 145 0.0 
Additional income through Refugee Integration Grant 90 0.0 
Civic Enterprise Leeds (CEL): staffing reductions through voluntary means based on reduced cleaning and catering in 
line with rationalisation of the council's estate.  314 -9.7 

Civic Enterprise Leeds (CEL): staffing reductions through voluntary means based on closing the Civic Hall Antechamber 
door and reception desk with the exception of ceremonial occasions.   60 -2.3 

Corporate Property Management (CEL): improved turnaround on void properties and reduced spend  60 0.0 
Fleet Services (CEL): additional commercial income 50 0.0 
Leeds Building Services (CEL): Reduction in financial pressures already built into the medium-term financial strategy 200 0.0 

Total ‘BAU’ Resources & Housing 2021/22 savings 2,664 -39.0 
 

Table 6: Total ‘BAU’ 2021/22 savings proposals for November Executive Board 

Directorate 2021/22 saving / £‘000s FTE budgeted posts 

Adults and Health 6,192 1.0 
Children & Families 949 -6.5 
City Development 3,000 -97.9 
Communities & Environment 1,616 -16.0 
Resources & Housing 2,664 -39.0 

Total 14,421 -158.4 
 

P
age 30



Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board November 2020 

Appendix 2a: Summary Service Review Proposals (please refer to Appendix 2b for reports and equality screenings on each proposal) 

Table 1: Adults & Health Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving  
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

Commissioned services for working age adults proposals: reduction in grant funding of learning disability day 
opportunities provision; early termination of WMDLC Shopmobility Grant; efficiencies in funding for drug and alcohol 
services; reduction in contract value of BID service; reduction in Touchstone community prevention service 

381 0.0 

Strategic Commissioning (Older Adults) proposals: a saving of £502k with services potentially affected by such a 
reduction including Neighbourhood Network Services, Volition, Leeds Jewish Welfare Services, Hamwatten & Al 
Khidmat Centres, Carers Services, Community Volunteer Services, Dementia Day Services and Offender Support 
Services.  This is the equivalent of a 10% cut but the exact details of implementation to be worked through in 
discussion with the sector. 

502 0.0 

A variety of staffing reductions across the Directorate have been proposed, firstly to reflect the ongoing freeze on the 
release of non-essential posts being maintained for a further year. All of these posts are non-front line roles. 
Secondly, the Directorate has supported a number of staff with their requests to leave early where a business case 
can be successfully developed. Again these successful cases are predominantly related to non-front line posts. 

1,221 -38.0 

Total Adults & Health 2021/22 savings proposals requiring consultation 2,104 -38.0 
 

Table 2: Children & Families Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving 
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

Proposal to carry out consultation with regard to permanently closing one council-funded childcare setting that has 
been closed since the start of the COVID-19 lockdown  162 -1.0 

Proposal to achieve savings through a review of Early Help services. Proposal to achieve management savings 
through closer integration of Early Help and Social Work teams.  Staffing implications will be identified through the 
course of the review.   

750 
N/A at this 

stage - please 
see proposal 

Total Children & Families 2021/22 savings proposals requiring consultation 912 -1.0 

 

P
age 31



Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals: Executive Board November 2020 

Table 3: City Development Directorate  

Proposal 2021/22 saving 
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

No proposals - - 

Total City Development 2021/22 savings proposals requiring consultation 0 0.0 
 

Table 4: Communities and Environment Directorate  

Proposal 2021/22 saving 
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

Proposal to carry out stakeholder consultation on closure of 3 community centres: Lewisham Community Centre, 
Allerton Bywater Youth Centre and Windmill Youth Centre.   Also to deliver additional efficiencies across all 
community centres. Staff affected would be redeployed to vacancies elsewhere.  

200 -2.0 

Total Communities & Environment 2021/22 savings proposals requiring consultation 200 -2.0 
 

Table 5: Resources & Housing Directorate 

Proposal 2021/22 saving 
/ £‘000s 

FTE budgeted 
posts 

No proposals - - 

Total Resources & Housing 2021/22 savings proposals requiring consultation 0 0.0 
 

Table 6: Total proposals requiring consultation for 2021/22 for November Exec Board 
Directorate 2021/22 saving / £‘000s FTE budgeted posts 
Adults and Health 2,104 -38.0 
Children & Families 912 -1.0 
City Development 0 0.0 
Communities & Environment 200 -2.0 
Resources & Housing 0 0.0 
Total 3,216 -41.0 

 

P
age 32



Service review report 

Report to: Executive Board 
Date of meeting: 18th November 2020 
Report author(s): Caroline Baria, Deputy Director, Integrated Commissioning 
Report of: Cath Roff, Director Adults & Health 
Portfolio:  Councillor Rebecca Charlwood 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?  No  

Proposal title: Savings Proposals for Commissioned Services for Working Age Adults 
2021/22 savings from proposal £  381,000 

Who are you expecting to 
consult with? 

Service users? Yes 
Staff? Yes 
Other stakeholders? Yes 

Are there equalities implications? Yes 
If yes, have you attached a screening document? Yes 

Executive Summary 

Overview  

All directorates are identifying potential savings from all budget areas for 2021/22. This paper covers the area 
of commissioned services for Working Age Adults (WAA) and specifically support provided to voluntary and 
third sector organisations for the provision of services/activity which is discretionary in its nature. The savings 
option of reducing the quantum of support to the sector by 10% was identified at a number of separate 
Financial Planning workshops held in July 2020 involving officers from Adults & Health Commissioning, Social 
Work, Service Transformation Team and Finance. These are all proposals that in the view of officers are not 
activity which can be classed as business as usual and will require consultation with key stakeholders. 

Impacts of proposal 

There could be an impact for a number of third sector care providers and voluntary sector organisations in 
terms of reduced revenue. All the proposals will require consultation with the providers, it is thought that the 
reduction in the funding by a quantum of 10% (equating to £381,000) from a combination of ceasing funding 
for some services and reducing funding for others and could be managed with minimum potential disruption 
and negative impact on service users and staff, but this is not certain as they are small funding streams, and 
therefore we intend to work closely with the sector to negotiate how best to apply this reduction across all 
affected providers. We will be reviewing these reductions with our Health/CCG partners with a view to 
prioritising our joint resources to those non-statutory services that deliver the maximum benefit to our 
vulnerable citizens. 

Services specifically affected include: 
• Day services for people with learning disabilities – People in Action, Advonet, Connect in the North
• Services for people with mental health needs – Touchstone, Living Well Leeds
• Services for disabled people – Shopmobility services, Hearing and Sight Loss
• people with substance misuse issues – Drug and Alcohol Services

Revenue budget update 2021/22 and budget savings proposals
Executive Board November 2020, Appendix 2b

Page 33



 
Recommendation(s) 

Members are requested: 
1. To consider the proposal to reduce the quantum of funding to a number of projects relating to 

discretionary services for Working Age Adults by 10% (equating to £381,000) affecting the service areas 
detailed above. 
 

2. To approve the proposal going out to consultation as part of the council’s medium-term financial strategy 
and preparation for setting the 2021/22 Budget.  

The responsible individual for delivery of this proposal is Cath Roff, Director Adults & Health with support from 
Caroline Baria, Deputy Director Integrated Commissioning.  

Page 34



 
Service review report 

Report to: Executive Board 
Date of meeting: 18th November 2020 
Report author(s): Caroline Baria 
Report of: Cath Roff, Director Adults & Health 
Portfolio:  Health, Wellbeing and Adults 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?  No 

Proposal title:  Savings Proposals for Strategic Commissioning (Older Adults) 
2021/22 savings from proposal £  502,000 

 
Who are you expecting to 
consult with? 

Service users? Yes   
Staff? Yes  
Other stakeholders? Yes  

 
Are there equalities implications? Yes  
If yes, have you attached a screening document? Yes  

Executive Summary  

Overview  

All directorates are identifying potential savings from all budget areas for 2021/22. This paper covers the area 
of commissioned services for older adults and specifically support provided to voluntary and third sector 
organisations for the provision of services/activity which is discretionary in its nature. The savings option of 
reducing the quantum of support to the sector by 10% was identified at a number of separate Financial 
Planning workshops held in July 2020 involving officers from Adults & Health Commissioning, Social Work, 
Service Transformation Team and Finance. These are all proposals that in the view of officers are not activity 
which can be classed as business as usual and will require consultation with key stakeholders. 

Impacts of proposal  

There could be an impact for a number of third sector care providers and voluntary sector organisations in 
terms of reduced revenue. All the proposals will require consultation with the providers, it is thought that the 
reduction in the funding by a quantum of 10% (equating to £502,000) from a combination of ceasing funding 
for some services and reducing funding for others and could be managed with minimum potential disruption 
and negative impact on service users and staff, but this is not certain as they are small funding streams, and 
therefore we intend to work closely with the sector to negotiate how best to apply this reduction across all 
affected providers. We will be reviewing these reductions with our Health/CCG partners with a view to 
prioritising our joint resources to those non-statutory services that deliver the maximum benefit to our 
vulnerable citizens. 

Resources of both social work staff and Commissioning VFM officers would need to be prioritised or increased 
to undertake much of the above work.  

Services potentially affected by such a reduction include Neighbourhood Network Services, Volition, Leeds 
Jewish Welfare Services, Hamwatten & Al Khidmat Centres, Carers Services, Community Volunteer Services, 
Dementia Day Services and Offender Support Services. 

Recommendation(s) 

Page 35



 
Members are requested: 
 
1. To consider the proposal to reduce the quantum of funding to a number of projects relating to 

discretionary services for Older Adults by 10% (equating to £502,000) 
2. To approve the proposal going out to consultation as part of the council’s medium-term financial strategy 

and preparation for setting the 2021/22 Budget.  
3. To note that the responsible individual for delivery of this proposal is Cath Roff, Director Adults & Health 

with support from Caroline Baria, Deputy Director Integrated Commissioning.  

Page 36



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

1 

 
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and 
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration. 

 
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the 
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines 
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions. 
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine: 
 

• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration.   

• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has 
already been considered, and 

• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment. 
 
Directorate: Adults & Health Service area: Integrated Commissioning 

 
Lead person: Caroline Baria 
 

Contact number:  

 
1. Title: Savings Proposals for Strategic Commissioning proposals (Older Adults & Working Age 
Adults) 
 
Is this a: 
      Strategy / Policy                    Service / Function                 Other 
                                                                                                                
 
 
If other, please specify 
 
 
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening 
 
 
The Adults & Health Integrated commissioning service is proposing a number of savings 
options that will affect the third / voluntary sector within the Older and Working Age 
Adults service areas. There are a range of savings proposals including  a 10% reduction 
in the overall funding of discretionary services.  This will be delivered through a 
combination of ceasing funding of some services once the contract term ends, and by 
reducing the funding levels allocated to some of the other discretionary services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and 
Integration (EDCI) screening 

 x  

Page 37



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

2 

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users, 
employees or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a 
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.   
 
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are. 
 
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender 
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that 
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being. 
 
Questions Yes No 
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different 
equality characteristics?  

X  

Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the 
policy or proposal? 

X  

Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or 
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by 
whom? 

X  

Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment 
practices? 

 X 

Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on 
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and 

harassment 
• Advancing equality of opportunity 
• Fostering good relations 

X  

 
If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7 
 
If you have answered yes to any of the above and; 

• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity, 
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4. 

• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration within your proposal please go to section 5. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

3 

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
 
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.  
 
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance). 

- How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration? 
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related 
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement 
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected) 
 
The impacts will be on Leeds citizens who receive support and/or connect with others 
through voluntary sector partners who provide services for adults who are either disabled; 
have other support needs or needs associated with older age. The services effected 
through this proposal provide support to people to maintain their independence in the 
community and promote their health and wellbeing. 
  
Proposals would affect the revenue available to organisations and it is thought that the 
reductions proposed could be managed without potential disruption and negative impact 
on service users and staff, but this is not certain as they are small funding streams, 
therefore any reduction considered must be consulted and negotiated potentially.  
Furthermore, third sector organisations attract funding from other external sources and 
COVID-19 has had an impact on these funding opportunities.  The full impact of these 
proposals would therefore only be fully understand once the detail of how the saving 
would be realised has been agreed on a service by service basis. 
 
The services provided directly support older adults, adults with learning disabilities, adults 
with mental health and physical health issues, carers and adults with vulnerabilities due to 
drug and alcohol use or offending backgrounds. 
 
Any reduction to these services may affect these groups of individuals, however it is 
hoped that these impacts can be mitigated through consultation and engagement with the 
service providers and stakeholders with a view to working flexibly, innovatively, reviewing 
delivery and expectations to ensure minimal impact – however this cannot be confirmed 
at this stage. 
 
It is proposed that the LCC funding of Shopmobility Services within the Merrion Centre 
should cease, in line with other major shopping venues where this is provided via the 
venue. This may lead to a serious impact on/closure of the service which would impact on 
people’s access to the retail and hospitality sector particularly in the north of Leeds City 
Centre. A cessation of service would directly affect the ability for those individuals to be 
more independent whilst shopping in the community. 
 
 

- Key findings 
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality 
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups, 
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception 
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another) 
 

Page 39



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

4 

Some of the services facing potential funding reductions under these proposals include 
services providing support to: 

- older people 
- people with dementia 
- people with learning disabilities 
- people with mental health needs 
- disabled people 
- specific BAME communities 
- people with substance misuse issues 
- people with an offending history 

The full impact of even a 10% reduction in grant funding to these organisations will not be 
known until detailed impact analysis is carried out with those providers, however possible 
key impacts will be; 

- the continued ability to deliver the level of service to the same number of people 
- a change to the type of service which is offered 
- cessation of certain activity/advice/guidance/support offered within the community 
- viability of continued service  
 

 
 

- Actions 
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact) 
 

- On a service by service basis, work with each third sector provider to identify how 
a funding reduction will be implemented whilst minimising the impact on service 
users. 

- Signpost organisations to support and advice to help them manage the changes; 
including support to identify alternative funding streams 

- Work with Forum Central, as the health and care third sector infrastructure 
support, to identify how any reductions in service resulting from the funding 
reductions could be picked up within the wider sector 

- Work with providers to identify Asset Based community alternatives to their service 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5.  If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment. 
 
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment: 
 

November/December 2020 

Date to complete your impact assessment 
 

November/December 2020 

Lead person for your impact assessment 
(Include name and job title) 

 

 
 

Page 40



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

5 

6. Governance, ownership and approval 
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening 
Name Job title Date 
 
 

  

Date screening completed  
 

 
7. Publishing 
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only 
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or 
a Significant Operational Decision.  
 
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision 
making report:  

• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full 
Council. 

• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and 
Significant Operational Decisions.  

• A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent 
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record. 

 
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening 
was sent: 
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to 
Governance Services  
 

Date sent: 

For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational 
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate 
 

Date sent: 
 
 

All other decisions – sent to  
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk 
 

Date sent: 

 
 
 

Page 41

mailto:equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk
mailto:equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk


 
Service review report 

Report to: Executive Board 
Date of meeting: 18th November 2020 
Report author(s): Steve Hume 
Report of: Director of Adults & Health 
Portfolio: Heath, Wellbeing & Adults  
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?  No  

Proposal title:  Staffing Savings (including Early Leaver Initiative) 
2021/22 savings from proposal £ 1.221m  

 
Who are you expecting to 
consult with? 

Service users? No  
Staff? Yes  
Other stakeholders? No – except Health Partnerships proposal 

 
Are there equalities implications? No  
If yes, have you attached a screening document? N/A  

Executive Summary  

Overview  

This service review report attempts to capture all of the staffing savings identified within the Adults & Health 
Directorate from both reviewing vacant posts that are not essential to fill at this time due to the ongoing 
financial challenges, together with those as a result of successful business cases being developed from the 
requests received and reaffirmed by employees in relation to the Council’s Early Leavers Initiative (ELI), which 
closed at the end of September 2020. 

Impacts of proposal  

The proposals will deliver savings against the Directorate staffing budget of £1.221m. This is made up of £253k 
from essentially not filling vacant posts and £968k from supporting ELI requests which have then allowed a 
recurrent staffing saving to be made. 
 
The proposals for ELI have all involved the development of individual business cases to demonstrate how 
services can be reconfigured to maintain the quality and quantity of services whilst also delivering an overall 
financial saving. A significant number of requested ELI’s were unfortunately not able to be supported, 
particularly in front line service areas, as the posts involved could not be deleted and/or the work could not be 
reconfigured in such a way as to construct a successful business case. 
 
 Where the business cases agreed require posts to be deleted or reconfigured this will be done through the 
existing decision making processes, including consultations with staff and Trade Unions. 

Recommendation(s) 

Members of the Executive Board are requested to support the proposals to deliver staffing savings within the 
Adults & Health directorate through not filling vacant posts and supporting ELI requests as part of the council’s 
medium-term financial strategy and preparation for setting the 2021/22 Budget.  Cath Roff, the Director of 
Adults & Health and Steve Hume, the Chief Officer Resources & Strategy will be responsible for implementing 
these proposals 

Page 42



Service review report 

Report to: Executive Board 
Date of meeting: 18th November 2020 
Report author(s): Julie Longworth
Report of: Director Children and Families 
Portfolio:  Children and Families  
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?  No 

Proposal title: Reduction in LCC managed/funded child care settings 
2021/22 savings from 
proposal 

£162k 

Who are you expecting to 
consult with? 

Service users Yes 
Staff Yes 
Other stakeholders Yes 

Are there equalities implications? Yes 
If yes, have you attached a screening document? Yes 

Executive Summary  

Overview 

Little Owls nurseries 

The 29 Little Owls nurseries offer childcare to ensure the local authority statutory sufficiency duty in 
the city’s areas of greatest deprivation. They are Ofsted registered sites, offering early learning and 
childcare for 0-4 year olds for 50 weeks a year. Approximately 2,500 children take up places per 
annum when all sites are open.  

The 29 Little Owls settings largely operate in areas of high deprivation and employ around 430 full 
time equivalent staff, many staff work part time and term time only. The workforce is predominately 
female, offering flexible employment progression from apprenticeship to manager roles.   

Firthfields Little Owls nursery in Garforth has struggled to be financially sustainable for the last six 
years as other providers gained a market share. Demand for places has reduced year on year as 
private and school provision has expanded rapidly in the area. Two settings Garforth Day Nursery 
and Daisy Chain expanded 6 years ago and this has impacted severely on places required.  Another 
setting has recently opened within 1 mile of Firthfields. Firthfields Little Owls operates ten hour days 
Monday to Friday and has in recent years only achieved 30% capacity, which has resulted in a 
consistent deficit at this nursery. 

Year Deficit Occupancy 
2017 57,274 33% 
2018 90,790 34% 
2019 113,390 30% 

Page 43



Children Centre family services provision in Garforth has been limited due to the lack of delivery 
space and outdoor play area within its current location, Garforth Academy. The space currently 
occupied by Little Owls Firthfields nursery would be ideal as a new space for the delivery of family 
services. The building adjoins a former Elderly Day centre which closed a number of years ago and is 
now used for adult services. 

It is proposed that the Children and Families directorate cease the delivery of childcare from the 
Little Owls Firthfields, Garforth site and relocate the Children Centre Family Services from Garforth 
Academy to this building, enhancing the quality of family services on offer to the community.  

Proposal 

To cease childcare delivery from the Firthfields Little Owls site and relocate Childrens Centre Family 
Services from Garforth Academy to this building, enhancing the quality of the family services on 
offer to the community. 

Potential savings - £161,520 

Consultation will take place with all relevant stakeholders. 

Impacts of proposal 

Little Owls 

Closure of the Little Owls Firthfields nursery will have an impact on families who have used the 
setting and staff who worked in it.  In October 2020 there are 7 children on Roll at the centre, 3 of 
these are attending Osmondthorpe Little Owls, 4 children and families are not in provision, waiting 
for the centre to reopen. There are also 4 children and families on the waiting list, all have been 
contacted by the manager to ask if they still require a place and can be supported to find alternative 
provision. 

• The posts currently assigned to Firthfields are as follows

Post Grade FTE 
Day care Manager PO1 1 
Nursery Assistant B1 3.19 
Nursery Officer B3 2 

• There is currently an assistant manager vacancy.

• The cook (employed by catering) left her position in April 2020

• The nursery assistant and nursery officer posts would be absorbed into other Little Owls
settings.

• The day care manager post would be at risk.

In terms of the local authority Sufficiency Duty, there are 5 full day care nurseries within 2 miles of 
Little Owls Firthfields nursery and 3 primary schools with nurseries which means that 0-5 places in 
Garforth are sufficient for the number of children in the area. 

Page 44



The financial deficit for this centre in 2019/20 was £79,000. 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are requested to consider the option to: 

1. Cease delivery of child care at Little Owls Firthfields. This will involve consultation with key
stakeholders, and will provide a saving of £161,520.

In October 2020 there are 7 children on Roll at the centre, 3 of these are attending
Osmondthorpe Little Owls, 4 children and families are not in provision, waiting for the centre to
reopen. There are also 4 children and families on the waiting list, all have been contacted by the
manager to ask if they still require a place and can be supported to find alternative provision.

There is sufficient child care provision to ensure that local alternatives will be available for every
affected child. It is expected that the majority of affected staff will be offered alternative work
within Children’s Centre services.

Sal Tariq, Director for Children and Families, will be the responsible officer.

Page 45



EDCI Screening Updated February 2011 1 

As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and 
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality, diversity, 
cohesion and integration. 

A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the process 
and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines relevance for 
all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions. Completed at the earliest 
opportunity it will help to determine: 

• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.

• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being/has already
been considered, and

• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.

Directorate: Children and Families Service area: Learning for Life 

Lead person: Amanda Ashe Contact number: 0113 3784500 

1. Title: Relocation of nursery provision @ Little Owls Firthfields and expansion to
family services at Garforth Childrens centre

Is this a: 

Strategy / Policy                    Service / Function      Other 

If other, please specify 

2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening

The expansion of family services space at Firthfields children centre, and a 
changed child care and early learning offer of full day care at Osmondthorpe 
childrens centre with private provision available for the remaining children.  

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and 
Integration Screening 

X 

Page 46



EDCI Screening Updated February 2011 2 

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies/policies, services/functions affect service users, employees or 
the wider community – city wide or more local.  These will also have a greater/lesser 
relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.   

The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are. 

When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender 
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation and any other relevant 
characteristics (for example socio-economic status, social class, income, unemployment, 
residential location or family background and education or skills levels). 

Questions Yes No 
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different 
equality characteristics?  

X 

Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the 
policy or proposal? 

X 

Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or 
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by 
whom? 

X 

Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment 
practices? 

X 

Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on 
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and

harassment
• Advancing equality of opportunity
• Fostering good relations

X 

If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7 

If you have answered yes to any of the above and; 
• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion

and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and

integration within your proposal please go to section 5.

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration

If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.  
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance). 

• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about     
The service has considered the impact on families and because family services are 
expanding and sufficient alternative childcare is available nearby this process will support 
improved community involvement and no particular group should be disadvantaged. 

Page 47



EDCI Screening Updated February 2011 3 

• Key findings
The proposal is to close to childcare and to expand family services into the Firthfields 
Nursery building utilising office space and former childcare rooms to deliver training, 
crèche and stay and play. Childcare places will be relocated to Osmondthorpe or other 
private providers and support will be given to locate suitable provision for families.  

Where other centres are closer to the family’s home address, places will be offered there 
for the convenience of the families. With expansion of local nursery provision demand is 
falling and children can be accommodated close by rather than occupying an almost 
empty building which could be put to more efficient use.   

Because services for Vulnerable families will not be compromised and there are sufficient 
childcare places in the area to service all needs including parents who are only accessing 
free entitlement, there does not appear to be an impact on different equality groups. For 
this reason we understand that no particular equality group is impacted 

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact) 

Families who have accessed childcare in the recent past at Firthfields will be contacted to 
ensure that they have secured an alternative place or be supported to do so.  Family 
services expansion will be publicised and more families will be reached by both childrens 
centre services and co located 0-19 teams.  

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.

Date to scope and plan your impact assessment: 20th October 2020 

Date to complete your impact assessment 29th October 2020 

Lead person for your impact assessment 
(Include name and job title) 

Julia Manning early Start Manager 

Page 48



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   
   

4 

6. Governance, ownership and approval 
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening 
Name Job title Date 
Amanda Ashe Children’s Centre and 

Early Start Lead 
05/11/2020 

7. Publishing 
This screening document will act as evidence that due regard to equality and diversity 
has been given. If are not carrying out an independent impact assessment the screening 
document will need to be published. 
 
Please send a copy to the Equality Team for publishing 
 
Date screening completed 29/10/2020 

 
Date sent to Equality Team 
 

 

Date published 
(To be completed by the Equality Team) 

 

 

Page 49



EDCI impact assessment              Template updated January 2014 1 

As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and 
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality, diversity, 
cohesion and integration. In all appropriate instances we will need to carry out an equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration impact assessment. 

This form: 
• can be used to prompt discussion when carrying out your impact assessment
• should be completed either during the assessment process or following completion

of the assessment
• should include a brief explanation where a section is not applicable

Directorate: Children and Families Service area: Early Start 
Lead person: Amanda Ashe Contact number: 3784500 

Date of the equality, diversity, cohesion and integration impact assessment: 
29 October 2020 

1. Title:  Relocation of nursery provision @ Little Owls Firthfields and expansion
to family services at Garforth Childrens centre

Is this a: 

Strategy /Policy                    Service / Function      Other 

If other, please specify 

2. Members of the assessment team:
Name Organisation Role on assessment team 

e.g. service user, manager of service,
specialist

Julia Manning Early Start Specialist 
Janine Wallace Early Learning 

Manager 
Manager of service 

Keely Woodward 
Chapman 

Early Start Early Start Manager 

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and 
Integration Impact Assessment 

x 

Page 50



EDCI impact assessment                                                                       Template updated January 2014 2 

 
 
 
3.  Summary of strategy, policy, service or function that was assessed:   
 
 

The expansion of family services space at Firthfields children centre, and a 
changed child care and early learning offer of full day care at Osmondthorpe 
childrens centre with private provision available for the remaining children.  

 
 

 
4. Scope of the equality, diversity, cohesion and integration impact assessment  
(complete - 4a. if you are assessing a strategy, policy or plan and 4b. if you are assessing 
a service, function or event) 
 
4a.  Strategy, policy or plan   
(please tick the appropriate box below) 
 
The vision and themes, objectives or outcomes 
 

            

 
The vision and themes, objectives or outcomes and the supporting 
guidance 
 

 

 
A specific section within the strategy, policy or plan 
 

 

Please provide detail: 
Little Owls@ Firthfields nursery in Garforth has struggled to be financially sustainable for some 
time. Demand for places has reduced year on year as private and school provision has expanded 
rapidly in the area. Two settings Garforth Day Nursery and Daisy Chain expanded 6 years ago and 
this has impacted severely on demand for places.  Another setting has recently opened within 1 
mile of Firthfields .The Little Owls @Firthfields operates ten hour days Monday to Friday and has 
recently only achieved 30% capacity, which has resulted in a consistent deficit at this nursery. 
 

Year Deficit Occupancy 
2017 57,274 33% 
2018 90,790 34% 
2019 113,390 30% 

Children Centre Family services cannot currently use the Firthfields centre for delivery of 
groups and courses because of the limited space available. They hire space in Garforth 
academy which costs upwards of £20,000 a year and is difficult to access for families 
particularly in the current Covid situation. An expansion of family services in this area 
would allow co- location of other 0-19 services and support families in need. The over 
provision of day care in the area would mean that the places at Firthfields would not 
impact on sufficiency of day care. 

 

 

 

x 

Page 51



EDCI impact assessment                                                                       Template updated January 2014 3 

 
4b. Service, function, event 
please tick the appropriate box below 
 
The whole service  
(including service provision and employment) 

            

 
A specific part of the service  
(including service provision or employment or a specific section of 
the service) 

 

Procuring of a service 
(by contract or grant) 
 

 

Please provide detail: 
The proposal is to close to childcare and to expand family services into the Firthfields 
Nursery building utilising office space and former childcare rooms to deliver training, 
crèche and stay and play. Childcare places will be relocated to Osmondthorpe or other 
private providers and support will be given to locate suitable provision for families. Where 
other centres are closer to the family’s home address, places will be offered there for the 
convenience of the families. With expansion of local nursery provision demand is falling 
and children can be accommodated close by rather than occupying an almost empty 
building which could be put to more efficient use. 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Fact finding – what do we already know 
Make a note here of all information you will be using to carry out this assessment.  This 
could include: previous consultation, involvement, research, results from perception 
surveys, equality monitoring and customer/ staff feedback.  
 
(priority should be given to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration related information) 
Garforth is a commuter town for Leeds which was once a mining village.  This is a blue 
collar area with a high proportion of families from low social-economic backgrounds. The 
majority of both parents are working parents which means demand for full day care is high, 
hence the proliferation of private provision in the area. More than 96% of the population is  
English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British. 
There are 682 0-5 children in Garforth. There are 186 3-4’s in Garforth and take up of 3-4 
year old provision is 99%. School nurseries make up 47%, private provision – 39% leaving 
Firthfields at 13% which equated to 22 places. The majority of these children have now 
moved on to school or taken up childcare elsewhere. 
 
 
 
 
Are there any gaps in equality and diversity information 
Please provide detail:  

There are no current statistics available for the LGBT population in the area 

 

 

x 

 

Page 52



EDCI impact assessment              Template updated January 2014 4 

Action required: 

None. We currently do not collect these statistics but these would not necessarily impact 
on this decision since this equality community will be accounted for in the other 
communities  

6. Wider involvement – have you involved groups of people who are most likely to
be affected or interested

 Yes      No

Please provide detail: 

We have spoken to parents from the area about the potential changes. 

Action required: 

None 

7. Who may be affected by this activity?
please tick all relevant and significant equality characteristics, stakeholders and barriers
that apply to your strategy, policy, service or function

Equality characteristics 

  Age    Carers                Disability

 Gender reassignment  Race     Religion 
    or Belief 

 Sex   (male or female)        Sexual orientation 

      Other  

(Other can include – marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, and those 
areas that impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-
being) 
Please specify: 

X 

x 

x 

Page 53



EDCI impact assessment              Template updated January 2014 5 

Low income parents 
Stakeholders 

      
         Services users                Employees         Trade Unions 

      Partners           Members      Suppliers 

      Other please specify schools 

Potential barriers.    

    Built environment            Location of premises and services 

 Information            Customer care      
 and communication 

 Timing    Stereotypes and assumptions 

 Cost      Consultation and involvement 

 Financial exclusion       Employment and training 

       specific barriers to the strategy, policy, services or function 

Please specify 

8. Positive and negative impact
Think about what you are assessing (scope), the fact finding information, the potential
positive and negative impact on equality characteristics, stakeholders and the effect of the
barriers
8a. Positive impact: 

Participation in family services could be higher but a lack of venue and presence in the 
area of family services is impacting on the manager’s ability to improve engagement.   
Using this site for community engagement and family services would support greater 
involvement with local families who are difficult to reach.  
Children currently accessing 15 hours 2 and 3 year old free entitlement at this centre are 
not having the experience we would like because of very low numbers. This curtails 
interaction with their peers and does not support preparation for learning in larger groups 
which will happen once they get to school. By moving the nursery provision to a larger 

x 

x 

x 

x x 

x 

 

X 

Page 54



EDCI impact assessment                                                                       Template updated January 2014 6 

centre this issue will be resolved. 

By changing the venue from day care and expanding family services, the service avoids 
undue costs and opens up the venue to attract new parents to the expanded family 
services. This would be more problematic if we were offering nursery provision on this site. 
The service would also save the £20,000 paid to garforth academy for family services 
space. 

 

Action  required: 

Ensure family services build relationships with the childcare providers in the area 

 
8b. Negative impact: 

 
Since there is over provision within the area all children will be able to access a place 
within the area. Building relationships with private providers will ensure that any vulnerable 
children are identified and the providers can be offered support. However for the last 5 
years there have been no children accessing Firthfields with safeguarding concerns 
suggesting that all such children are already at other provision in the area. 
 
Action  required: 

 
All parents will be supported to find places close to their address. The childrens centre 
Early Learning manager must ensure that all parents are physically able to access a place. 

 
 
 
 
9.  Will this activity promote strong and positive relationships between the 
groups/communities identified? 
                  
                   Yes                                                  No 
 
Please provide detail: 
Family services at Garforth are limited because of a lack of venue. Using the building as a 
venue for family services will support greater interaction with the Garforth families 
 
 
Action required:  
Ensure all Garforth families are aware of the services available 
 
 
 

X  

Page 55



EDCI impact assessment              Template updated January 2014 7 

10. Does this activity bring groups/communities into increased contact with each
other? (e.g. in schools, neighbourhood, workplace)

             Yes   No  

Please provide detail: 

Families with children under 5 will  have increased opportunities to interact with each other 
in the immediate Garforth area 

Action required:  

Ensure families are aware of the improved offer 

11. Could this activity be perceived as benefiting one group at the expense of
another? (e.g. where your activity/decision is aimed at adults could it have an impact on
children and young people)

   Yes        No 

Please provide detail: 

   The families targeted for nursery places and family services are the same families so will 
be equally affected.        

Action required:  
None 

X 

x 

Page 56



 

 8 

 
12. Equality, diversity, cohesion and integration action plan 
(insert all your actions from your assessment here, set timescales, measures and identify a lead person for each action) 
 
Action 
 

Timescale Measure Lead person 

 
Ensure family services build a 
relationship with the new 
childcare providers 
 
 
 

 
January 2021 –January 2022 

 
Family services are able to 
leave information and / or meet 
parents at the new providers to 
provide support 

 
Joanne Harrison 

The childrens centre Early 
Learning manager must 
ensure that all parents are 
physically able to access a 
place 
 

Before Official closure of Little 
Owls Firthfields 

All families formerly engaged 
at Little Owls Firthfields 
nursery have a place at a 
nursery 

Janine Wallace 

 
Ensure all Garforth families are 
aware of the services available 
and the improved offer 
 

 
Within 12 months of the 
expansion  of the family 
services at Firthfields 

 
Improved participation in family 
services from the Garforth 
area. Family registrations and 
engagement meet the ‘good’ 
criteria for Ofsted. 

 
Joanne Harrison 

P
age 57



 

 9 

13. Governance, ownership and approval 
State here who has approved the actions and outcomes from the equality, diversity, 
cohesion and integration impact assessment 
Name Job Title Date 
 
Amanda Ashe 

Children’s Centre & Early 
Start Lead 
 

29/10/2020 

Date impact assessment completed 
 

 

 
14.  Monitoring progress for equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
actions  (please tick) 
             As part of Service Planning performance monitoring 
 
  
                  As part of Project monitoring 
 
                  Update report will be agreed and provided to the appropriate board 
                  Please specify which board 
 
             
                  Other (please specify) 
 
 
15. Publishing 
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only 
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated 
Decisions or a Significant Operational Decision.  
 
A copy of this equality impact assessment should be attached as an appendix to the 
decision making report:  

• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full 
Council. 

• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions 
and Significant Operational Decisions.  

• A copy of all other equality impact assessments that are not to be published 
should be sent to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk  for record. 

 
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached 
assessment was sent: 
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to 
Governance Services  
 

Date sent:  05/11/2020 

For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational 
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate 
 

Date sent: 
 
 

All other decisions – sent to  
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk 
 

Date sent: 

 

x 

 

 

 

Page 58

mailto:equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk
mailto:equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk


Service review report

Report to: Executive Board 
Date of meeting: 18th November 2020 
Report author(s): Julie Longworth  
Report of: Director Children and Families 
Portfolio:  Children and Families  
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?  No 

Proposal title: Children Looked After Review / Review of Early Help and 
Prevention 

2021/22 savings from proposal £750k 

Who are you expecting to 
consult with? 

Service users Yes 
Staff Yes 
Other stakeholders Yes 

Are there equalities implications? Yes 
If yes, have you attached a screening document? Yes 

Executive Summary 

Overview 

Children Looked After (CLA) services have a gross managed budget of £87m and a net managed 
budget of £67m, with 505 FTEs. This covers the following services: 

Service Gross managed 
budget 20/21 
(£000) 

Net managed 
budget 20/21 
(£000) 

Statutory/discretionary 

Children Looked After – 
Residential Services (Incl. Adel 
Beck secure unit) 

 10,952  3,922 Statutory 

Children Looked After – Youth 
Justice Service 

 3,780  1,895 Mostly statutory (small 
proportion non-

statutory but subject to 
external inspection) 

Children Looked After – Youth 
Service 

 4,645  3,251 Some statutory 
elements, remainder 

early intervention and 
prevention 

Children Looked After – 
Demand Led Budgets 

 57,539  48,325 Statutory 

Children Looked After – Social 
Work Teams (Inc. Therapeutic 
Service) 

 10,124  9,838 Statutory 

Page 59



 
Service Gross managed 

budget 20/21 
(£000) 

Net managed 
budget 20/21 
(£000) 

Statutory/discretionary 

Total 87,040 67,231  
 

The most recent figures released by the Department for Education for March 2019 revealed that the 
number of children in care in the UK is at a ten-year high, having risen by 28% over the last decade 
with more than 78,000 children and young people now being looked after by local authorities.  
Councils in England have also seen a 53% rise in the number of young people subject to child 
protection plans.  
 
In Leeds the number of looked after children peaked in March 2012 at a figure of 1475 and a rate 
per ten thousand (RPTT) of children looked after of 95.3.  By March, 2016 the number of children in 
care had reduced to 1239 and the RPTT to 76.  Leeds rate as at March 2019, the latest national 
published figures, was a RPTT of 76.6 with 1288 children in care.   
 
These rates of children in care remained relatively stable until December 2018.   Since December 
2018 there was been a slow increase in the number of looked after children, peaking the middle of 
2020.  As of September 2020 there were 1330 children in care, a RPTT of 79.  The Leeds child 
population is continuing to increase with the rate of growth greater in disadvantaged communities; 
growth is now concentrated in the teenage population. 
 
The latest published DFE statistical neighbour rate per ten thousand figure for March 2019 was 88.0, 
up from 80.6 in March 2018.  After being marginally above in 2016 the Leeds RPTT has been below 
the statistical neighbour average since 2017.  From March 2016 to March 2019 Leeds children in 
care numbers grew 4% compared to statistical neighbours 17%, regionally 18% and 11% for 
England.  Regional benchmarking up to June 2020 suggests ongoing growth in children in care, 
official data for March 2020 is expected in December. 
 
Since 2011, the Leeds rate per ten thousand figure has reduced by 16 points, from 95 to 79 
(September 2020). The latest published figures show that the statistical neighbour rate per ten 
thousand rose by 13 points, from 75 (2011) to 88 (2019), with the national rate per ten thousand 
rising by seven points, from 58 (2011) to 65 (2019). 
 
The success of Leeds in bucking the national and regional trends has been as a result of the whole 
city approach to improving support for children and families. Local analysis, OfSTED inspection and 
independent academic research have shown the successful impact of the Leeds strategy.  
 
Within the framework of a Child Friendly City approach, a strategy was implemented with cross 
party and wide community support that focused on whole system change, promoting prevention 
and early help and developing restorative practice to support new ways of work with families with a 
focus on maintaining children and young people within their birth families wherever it was safe and 
appropriate to do so. Local services also led national practice and invested in a wide range of 
evidence based and innovative approaches including Multi Systemic Therapy, Family Group 
Conferencing and Restorative Early Support Teams.  
 

Page 60



 
Leeds City Council has retained 56 Children’s Centres that provide Early Years Support to children 
and families across the city, they are integral to the Leeds Early Help Strategy and the Early Help and 
Prevention approach.  
 
The Children’s Centres make a major contribution to reducing health and other inequalities by 
breaking the cycle of disadvantage; particularly through their contribution to the delivery of Leeds 
Best Start plan, Maternity Strategy, including the Peri-natal Mental health Pathway, Health and 
wellbeing strategy and Domestic Violence and Abuse Strategy. 
 
The Children’s Centre service model builds upon current integrated provision between the 0-19 
Public Health Integrated Nursing Service (PHINS) and Children’s Centres in order to deliver a 
seamless service for children and families who are accessing a range of health and social support 
services, this is the Early Start Offer (0-5). A key priority is to focus on improving health and 
wellbeing outcomes for the most vulnerable families, narrowing the gap and ensuring inequalities 
are reduced.  
 
It is the view of the Children and Families directorate that a review of Children Looked After cannot 
be undertaken in isolation and has to be seen within a wider context given that Early Help and 
Preventative services are critical to achieving and sustaining a reduction in the numbers of children 
looked after. 
 
There has been a pattern in recent years of Local Authorities across the country cutting Early Help 
and Preventative services in order to achieve savings. 
 
The directorate has seen the negative impact on performance, inspection results, the workforce, and 
most importantly outcomes for children and families in authorities where cuts have been made to 
Early Help and Prevention through a single short sighted lens and in the absence of a multi-agency, 
city wide, strategic vision for Children and Families.  
 
A whole system approach is necessary to achieve the required level of savings, drive forward the 
vision for Child Friendly Leeds and maintain our ambition and improved outcomes for children, 
families and communities. 
 
This proposal will require complex project management and is likely to lead to significant re 
structure across a broad range of services, it will take between eighteen and thirty months to 
conclude given the scale of the task and the associated legal requirements for public consultation.  

 

Proposal 

That the review of Children Looked After services be expanded to encompass a review of Children 
and Families Early Help and Preventative services including Children’s Centres in order to achieve 
maximum savings, economy of scale, increased integration and multi-disciplinary approaches that 
will result in improved experiences and outcomes for children and families.  

 
Potential savings – It is not possible to calculate the exact amount of possible savings without more 
work having been done by the review team however it is anticipated that they will be significant and 
that 750K savings will be achieved in 21/22. 
 

Page 61



 
There will be a need for extensive public consultation and due process to be followed in order to 
meet the associated statutory requirements, as stated above it is likely to take between eighteen 
and thirty months before full savings can be realised 

Impacts of proposal 

Effective Early Help and Preventative services are critical to achieving and sustaining a reduction in 
the numbers of children looked after, there is a risk that a cut to these services could see an increase 
in the numbers of children entering care and this needs to be managed carefully.  

The proposal brings opportunities for greater integration of existing early help and preventative 
services for children aged 0 – 25 and their families, with the aim of providing an improved, more 
joined up service and better experiences / outcomes for the children and families that access them.  

The proposal will have an impact on children and families as there will be a reduction in the 
provision of some services.  The proposal will require wide consultation with a range of key 
stakeholders and for due process to be followed, there will be a statutory requirement for public 
consultation. 

An Equality Impact Assessment will be required.  

Recommendation(s) 

Members are requested to consider the option to: 

Expand the Children Looked After Service Review to encompass a review of Children and Families 
Early Help and Preventative services including Children’s Centres. 

This will require wide scale consultation, however it will provide significant savings and the 
opportunity to improve the current provision of early help and preventative services for children; 
young people aged 0 – 25 years and their families.  

Sal Tariq, Director for Children and Families, will be the responsible officer.   

 

Page 62



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   
   

1 

 
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and 
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality, diversity, 
cohesion and integration. 
 
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the process 
and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines relevance for 
all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions. Completed at the earliest 
opportunity it will help to determine: 

• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration.   

• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being/has already 
been considered, and 

• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment. 
 
Directorate: Children and Families Service area: Early Help  

 
Lead person: Paul Reddiex 
 

Contact number:07891270090 

 
1. Title: Strategic Review of Early Help Finance Proposal  
 
Is this a: 
      Strategy / Policy                    Service / Function                 Other 
                                                                                                                
 
 
If other, please specify 
 
 
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening 
 
Strategic review of Early Help services including Children Centres.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and 
Integration Screening 

X X  

Page 63



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   
   

2 

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
All the council’s strategies/policies, services/functions affect service users, employees or 
the wider community – city wide or more local.  These will also have a greater/lesser 
relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.   
 
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are. 
 
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender 
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation and any other relevant 
characteristics (for example socio-economic status, social class, income, unemployment, 
residential location or family background and education or skills levels). 
 
Questions Yes No 
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different 
equality characteristics?  

X  

Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the 
policy or proposal? 

       X  

Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or 
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by 
whom? 

X  

Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment 
practices? 

X  

Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on 
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and 

harassment 
• Advancing equality of opportunity 
• Fostering good relations 

X  

 
If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7 
 
If you have answered yes to any of the above and; 

• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion 
and integration within your proposal please go to section 4. 

• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration within your proposal please go to section 5. 

 
4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
 
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.  
Please provide specific details  for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance). 

• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration? 
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related 
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement 
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected) 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   
   

3 

• Key findings 
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality 
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups, 
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception 
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Actions 
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
5.  If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment. 
 
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment: 
 

September 2020 

Date to complete your impact assessment 
 

This will be ongoing as a number 
of service areas will be affected. 
The whole process is likely to take 
up to 30 months.  

Lead person for your impact assessment 
(Include name and job title) 

Lesley Wilkinson   

 
6. Governance, ownership and approval 
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening 
Name Job title Date 
Julie Longworth 
 

Deputy Director 20/08/20 

7. Publishing 
This screening document will act as evidence that due regard to equality and diversity 
has been given. If you are not carrying out an independent impact assessment the 
screening document will need to be published. 
 

Page 65



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   
   

4 

Please send a copy to the Equality Team for publishing 
 
Date screening completed 20/08/20 

 
Date sent to Equality Team 
 

21/08/20 

Date published 
(To be completed by the Equality Team) 

 

 

Page 66



Service review report 

Report to:  Executive Board 
Date of meeting: 18 Nov 2020 
Report author(s): Shaid Mahmood
Report of: Director Communities and Environment 
Portfolio:  Executive Member Communities 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?  Yes / No 

Proposal title: Community Centre efficiencies and proposed closure of 3 buildings 
2021/22 savings from proposal £  200k 

Who are you expecting to 
consult with? 

Service users? Yes / No / N/A 
Staff? Yes / No / N/A 
Other stakeholders? Yes / No / N/A 

Are there equalities implications? Yes / No 
If yes, have you attached a screening document? Yes / No / N/A 

Executive Summary 

Overview  

Proposal to deliver a reduction in costs of £200k in 2021/22 financial year through a range of 
measures including: reducing facilities management costs; driving efficiencies within our most costly 
centres; new lease arrangements for certain facilities; new asset transfer proposals; and, the closure 
of 3 buildings where users can be offered a practical alternative accommodation, and a range of 
further efficiencies.  

The buildings are: 

• Lewisham Community Centre (Morley South)
• Allerton Bywater Youth centre (Kippax and Methley)
• Windmill Youth Centre (Rothwell)

Impacts of proposal 

These proposals represent a significant but controlled reduction in service provided by the Council. 
We will remove service in a structured way to deliver savings, where the needs of current users can 
be met by alternative provision.  

This proposal is guided by the principle that subsidised space will continue to be justified in some 
settings, including, where we are meeting needs in priority areas of disadvantage and inequality, 
where we are meeting the needs of LCC tenants and where Neighbourhood Networks are based. 
However, wherever possible the Council will seek to recover its costs 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are requested to consider the proposal to implement the efficiency savings identified in 
this report, including the closure of Lewisham Community Centre (Morley South, Allerton Bywater 

Page 67



 
Youth centre (Kippax and Methley), Windmill Youth Centre (Rothwell). This will continue to provide 
community space for the current users of the buildings concerned while making revenue savings.  

Also to approve the proposal going out to consultation as part of the council’s medium-term 
financial strategy and preparation for setting the 2021/22 Budget. 

The Director of Communities and Environment will be responsible for implementation. 

 

Page 68



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

1 

 
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and 
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration. 
 
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the 
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines 
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions. 
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine: 

• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration.   

• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being or has 
already been considered, and 

• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment. 
 
Directorate: Communities and 
Environment 

Service area: Communities 

Lead person: Sarn Warbis 
 

Contact number: 0113 3785799 

 
1. Title: Community Centres Service Review  
 
Is this a: 
      Strategy / Policy                    Service / Function                 Other 
                                                                                                                
 
 
If other, please specify 
 
 
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening 
 

Proposal to deliver a reduction in costs of £200k in 2021/22 financial year through 
the closure of 3 buildings where users can be offered a practical alternative 
accommodation, and a range of further efficiencies.  

The buildings are:- 

• Lewisham Community Centre (Morley South)  

• Allerton Bywater Youth Centre (Kippax and Methley)  

• Windmill Youth Centre (Rothwell).  

Further efficiencies include conclusion of asset transfers with subsidies ending, lease 
of buildings to local groups, and reduction in facilities management costs across the 
portfolio, and in specific targeted savings 

 
Equality, Diversity, 

  
  

 X  

Page 69



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

2 

 
 

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users, 
employees or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a 
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.   
 
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are. 
 
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender 
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also those areas that 
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being. 
 
Questions Yes No 
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different 
equality characteristics?  

 x 

Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the 
policy or proposal? 

x  

Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or 
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by 
whom? 

 x 

Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment 
practices? 

 x 

Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on 
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and 

harassment 
• Advancing equality of opportunity 
• Fostering good relations 

 x 

 
If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7 
 
If you have answered yes to any of the above and; 

• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity, 
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4. 

• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration within your proposal please go to section 5. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

3 

 
 
4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
 
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.  
 
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance). 

• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration? 
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related 
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement 
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected) 
 
Analysis has been carried out of current and potential users of the community centres 
affected by the proposed decision. Community centres are available to be used by all 
members of the community in any area, however historically certain centres have had 
regular usage from groups supporting or representing people within specific equality 
categories. This has been taken into account when developing the proposal and actions 
have been referenced within the proposed decisions to mitigate any consequences that 
could potentially affect specific groups. The main focus of this is to ensure that current 
provision is maintained in facilities that may progress to a different management 
arrangement, and that appropriate alternative provision is offered where current centres 
are closed. 
 
 

• Key findings 
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality 
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups, 
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception 
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another) 
 
Progression of asset transfers / leases 
Protection will be included within contract arrangements for current users to continue with 
their activities under similar arrangements to those currently in place. Approved business 
cases for successful leases and asset transfers will include enhanced opportunities for 
local people and representative groups to influence the running of local facilities, the 
improvement of the facilities themselves and also the range of activities and opportunities 
available for the local community, based on the local need. 
 
Reductions in facilities management costs 
Efficiencies have been achieved over recent years through streamlining resources, while 
maintaining services that are targeted to ensure the equality of opportunity to use our 
facilities for everyone. Further changes to building management operations will ensure 
that those most in need of support to access facilities are assisted by focusing relevant 
staff resources to those areas. 
 
Building closures – the three buildings identified for closure have limited use compared to 
other community centres managed by Leeds City Council. This has been taken into 
account when assessing the overall impact on the people of the city for the reduction of 
the community centre portfolio. In the case of all three community centres alternative local 

Page 71



EDCI Screening Template updated January 2014 4 

provision is available for the current users of the buildings, and as part of the proposal a 
commitment is given to facilitate the transfer of existing groups to appropriate alternative 
local facilities. 
Across the three centres that are proposed for closure, existing activities cater for people 
with physical disabilities and mental health issues. There are also groups that support 
older and younger people. Discussions will take place with all groups to ensure that 
current provision is either matched or enhanced at alternative venues. 

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact) 

The proposed building closures will consolidate local activities into existing local facilities 
and will therefore enhance the viability of those venues. In current uncertain times, a 
focus on sustaining local activity and supporting existing groups through change is a 
positive action. Currently community centres are closed for public use. 

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.

Date to scope and plan your impact assessment: 

Date to complete your impact assessment 

Lead person for your impact assessment 
(Include name and job title) 

6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name Job title Date 
Shaid Mahmood Chief Officer Communities 22/10/20 

Date screening completed 

7. Publishing

Page 72



EDCI Screening  Template updated January 2014 
   
   

5 

Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only 
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions or 
a Significant Operational Decision.  
 
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decision 
making report:  

• Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full 
Council. 

• The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and 
Significant Operational Decisions.  

• A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent 
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk  for record. 

 
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening 
was sent: 
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to 
Governance Services  
 

Date sent: 

For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational 
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate 
 

Date sent: 
 
 

All other decisions – sent to  
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk 
 

Date sent: 

 
 
 

Page 73

mailto:equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk
mailto:equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3: Extract from draft Executive Board minutes 18/11/20 

http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/documents/g9977/Printed%20minutes%2018th-Nov-

2020%2013.00%20Executive%20Board.pdf?T=1 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, 18TH NOVEMBER, 2020 

PRESENT:      Councillor J Blake in the Chair 

Councillors A Carter, R Charlwood, D Coupar, S Golton, J 

Lewis, L Mulherin, J Pryor, M Rafique and F Venner 

77.  Revenue Budget Update 2021/22 and Budget Savings Proposals  Further to Minute No. 68, 21st 

October 2020, the Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report which presented the 

actions which were underway and proposed to address the financial gap for 2021/22, which 

was currently estimated at £118.8m. The report also presented a series of savings proposals to 

contribute towards the Council achieving a balanced budget for 2021/22 and, where 

appropriate, sought agreement to begin meaningful consultation with staff, trade unions, 

service users and the public as required.  

In considering the range of proposals within the submitted report and the ongoing service 

reviews taking place, a Member specifically emphasised the key role played by Neighbourhood 

Networks, and also the importance of services in communities, such as the provision of bowling 

greens.  

The transparency of the approach being taken by the submission of reports to the Board for 

consideration was highlighted, whilst a Member noted what they deemed to be the varying 

approaches to this process being taken by the different directorates.   

In conclusion, it was noted that further detail regarding the level of Local Government funding 

for next financial year was awaited ahead of the Chancellor’s Comprehensive Spending Review 

announcement, which was due later this month, and that available details would be provided to 

the Board in December.   

RESOLVED -  (a) That the Council’s financial position for 2021/22, as outlined in the submitted 

report, be noted, with it also being noted that further savings are required to deliver a balanced 

budget position;  

(b) That the ‘Business as Usual’ savings, as detailed within the submitted report be noted, with 

it also being noted that decisions to give effect to them shall be taken by the relevant Director 

or Chief Officer in accordance with the Officer delegation scheme (Executive functions);  

(c) That the recommendations in the ‘Service Review’ proposals, as detailed at Appendix 2b to 

the submitted report, be agreed, and that agreement be given to the associated consultation 

commencing. The Board also notes that decisions to give effect to such matters shall be taken 

by the relevant Director or Chief Officer, following the consultation period, in accordance 

with the Officer delegation scheme (Executive functions) save where the Leader, relevant 

portfolio holder or Director considers that the matter should be referred to Executive Board 

for consideration.  

Page 75

http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/documents/g9977/Printed%20minutes%2018th-Nov-2020%2013.00%20Executive%20Board.pdf?T=1
http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/documents/g9977/Printed%20minutes%2018th-Nov-2020%2013.00%20Executive%20Board.pdf?T=1


(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, both Councillors A Carter and Golton required 

it to be recorded that they respectively abstained from voting on the decisions referred to within 

this minute) 

 

 

Page 76


	Agenda
	6 Call In Briefing paper
	7 Revenue budget Update 2021/2022 and Budget Saving Proposals - Resolution 77(c)
	Appendix 1 Receipted Call in request form
	Appendix 2 Budget Update and Savings Proposals Report 091120
	Savings Proposals cover report EB 18Nov2020 FINAL
	Summary
	Main issues
	1. Best Council Plan Implications (see the latest version of the Best Council Plan)
	Recommendations
	1. Purpose of this report
	2. Background information
	3. Main issues
	4. Corporate considerations
	4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration
	4.3 Council policies and the Best Council Plan
	4.4 Resources, procurement and value for money
	4.5 Legal implications, access to information, and call-in
	4.6 Risk management
	5. Conclusions
	6. Recommendations
	7. Background documents0F

	Appendix 1 BAUs
	Appendix 2a SRs
	App 2b service review reports and EDCIs
	01 AH SR 3 and SR 5 Strat Commissioning WAA and OA Exec Sum and EDCI
	AH SR 3 Strat Commissioning WAA Exec Summary
	AH SR 5 Strat Commissioning OA Exec Summary
	EDCI AH SR 3 and AH SR 5 Commissioned Services
	Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration (EDCI) screening


	02 AH SR 11 Staffing ELIs Exec Summary
	03 CF SR 2 Childcare Settings Firthfields Exec Summary and Equalities docs
	CF SR 2 Childcare settings Firthfields Exec Summary
	CF SR 2 Equality Diversity Cohesion and Integration Screening
	CF SR 2 Equality Impact firthfields full assesment 2

	04 CF SR 1 CLA EH Exec Summary and EDCI
	CF SR 1 CLA EH Exec Summary
	EDCI CF SR 1 Strategic Review of Early Help

	05 CE SR 19 Community Centres Exec Summary and EDCI
	CE SR 19 Community Centres Exec Summary
	EDCI CE SR 19 Community Centres



	Appendix 3 Extract Exec Board draft minutes 201118


